1860s
The country was used as a range by stockmen, such as horse raisers Perry Oller, George and Dick Stewart and Charles Miller, and sheepmen James Sperry, O.E. Farnsworth and Frank Warrens. Stagecoaches and freight wagons labored across the plains east of the Cascades carrying provisions for local farmers and miners and carrying their goods to market. 

1870s
In 1870 Mr. John F. Royse, one of the most successful farmers in the area, and his brother, are reported to be the first permanent settlers in the Hardman country. The Royse’s were soon followed by Benjamin H. Parker, Peter Gleason, John H. Adams and Mrs. Nancy Johnson. Later came John Hadley, Dan Rice, A.H. Allen and others. 

Originally named Dairyville, the town became a favorite stopping point for the freighters and stage drivers. The settlement of the country made it necessary for the horse raisers and sheepmen who used it as a range to adopt other pursuits or seek other ranges. 

The town came to life as a freighting center and saw great prosperity. Dairyville became popularly knows as Raw Dog. About one mile away, in Morrow County, a rival settlement sprang up, known as Yellow Dog.

For the stagecoaches and wagon trains traveling north and south through eastern Oregon and Washington, either town was a convenient stopping point where passengers could rest for the night. The towns’ fierce rivalry escalated as they competed over which town would secure the stagecoach depot for the area. 

Since Raw Dog had a few more people than Yellow Dog, it was decided that Raw Dog would be the site for the permanent stagecoach station. Yellow Dog’s residents moved over to Raw Dog, and the two towns became known as one: Dogtown. 

In 1879 the first school was established. It was taught by Mr. Royce.

1880s 

During the 1800s Hardman reached a population of over 900. The town included a skating rink, two racetracks, a jailhouse, a dance hall, four stores, four hotels, four 
churches, a school and a newspaper. The jail was built of 2 x 6 lumber laid flat and was considered impregnable; until it was found, after a boisterous Halloween, tipped over on its side. It remained that way until the following 
Halloween, when it was burned down. 

1881
The town’s name changed to Hardman. David N. Hardman, an old pioneer farmer, had operated the post office out of his homestead, near town. His name was applied to the 
office. When he moved into town, he brought the post office with him, by consent of the government. The dignitaries couldn’t quite see Raw Dog or Dogtown as fitting names.  The town took the name of the post office and became generally known as Hardman. 

1882
The pioneer general merchandise store was opened by a man named Hughes, succeeded by the Kahler Brothers; the first blacksmith shop was opened by George Loutrelle, and these, with a few residences, formed the nucleus of the town. 

1888
Although it had been rumored that the railroad would go through Hardman, it was routed through Heppner instead and bypassed Hardman altogether. 

1900s
E.M. Shutt, owner of the Shutt Publishing Company of Hardman, started publishing “The Hardman Homestead.” This Saturday paper had a short lifespan, the last issue dating March 17, 1900, Volume 1, No. 36. The front page reported the progress of the British Army in the Boer War, there was an article on the “social and intellectual 
condition” of women in Spain, and a section was devoted to science and invention. The only hotel in Hardman at the time advertised board & room for a month at $12, single meals cost $0.25. A trip from Heppner to Hardman on the Heppner-Canyon City Stageline cost $1.50.

The businesses in Hardman by 1902 included: J.F. Royse & Sons, Mrs. E.E. Bleakman and H. E. Warren, dealers in general merchandise; the City Hotel, owned by Mrs. R.H. Stillwell, and the hotels of Mrs. J.C. Owens and Mrs. P.A. Reed; the feed stables of J. C. Owens and Charles Reed; R. H. Stillwater and Kline Ashbaugh, blacksmiths; one saloon; the barber shop of John Robertson; a meat market, owned by Frank Craner; a post office and a telephone office giving connection with Canyon City, Spray, Lone Rock, Heppner and over the country generally; three halls, one of which a dance hall owned by Guy Hadley. There were two public schools, presided over by Mr. L.T. Anderson and Mrs. Bayliss, and since these were not sufficient to accommodate the youth of the town and country, a new building was projected. A Methodist Episcopal Church housed services by Methodists, Baptists, United Brethren and Christians.

In An Illustrated History of Umatilla County, by Colonel William Parsons and Of Morrow County by W. S. Schiach, Hardman is described as a “quiet, yet busy little town... surrounded by one of the finest wheat, grain and stock  countries in Morrow County... likewise noted for its production of vegetables, especially potatoes...also beginning to win fame as a fruit producer, notwithstanding its elevation of about 3,600 feet. Another important element of wealth is the timber of the Blue Mountains. Two mills have for years been engaged in cutting this into lumber, Benjamin H. Parker’s and W. L. Mallory’s.” Farmers from miles around brought their wheat to be ground in Hardman’s big mill.

The workers at the  mills obtained supplies from Hardman, the nearest point. Hardman was the only stopping place for teams coming for wood from the vast country between the mountains and the Columbia river. All freight teams from the railway to interior points needed to pass through town. All these factors contributed to a great business for the hotels, delivery stables and, other business establishments.

1913
Handwritten Ordinance No. 16 prohibiting minors from visiting card, pool and billiard rooms. In several instances “minors” has been striken and replaced with “boys under the age of 18.”

1920s
Trucks had replaced horses, mail routes had changed and the railroad had routed through Heppner instead of Hardman. Hardman began its decline.

1930s
Neal Knighten of Hardman creates Knighten’s Satisfaction Whole Wheat Products business, manufacturing and distributing whole wheat cereal to all of North-eastern Oregon. Neal delivered his product during the week and came home to make more cereal over the weekends. The business grew so much that in 1943 Neal moved it to a larger flour mill in Wallowa, Oregon. Later, because of the war, rationing became a problem and Knighten’s Satisfaction Whole Wheat Products became another business casualty of the war.

1968
The last business in Hardman closed. 

2007
Amid the fallen-down structures there are buildings which have been restored to their original clapboard. Free-ranging animals and abandoned old vehicle remnants add to an atmosphere of strangeness.  Hardman is a class D ghost town which means it is a semi ghost town with a small resident population and many abandoned buildings. 

The town hall has been refurbished with the help of funds from the state. Hardman has a small but active membership in the Hardman Community Center. Stop in and enjoy  the Oyster Feed in October, and don’t forget their Hunter’s breakfasts in the old Town Hall building during Hunting season. 

Directions

From Pendleton, go twenty-three miles southwest on U.S. 395, then take State 74 thirty-seven miles to Heppner. Go eleven miles southeast on 206/207, take southern fork (207) another 9 miles to Hardman. 

